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Photos (3"x3" or 3"x5" black
& white) - Indicate on back
of each photo street addresses
for buildings shown. Staple to
Teft side of form.

Sketch Map. Draw a general map of the
.. area indicating properties within it.
_Number each property for which individual
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UT™ REFERENCE 19/316470/4686160
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Newton, Mass. MRA
Town NEWTON (Upper Falls——————

Name of Area (if any)

Newton Upper Falls Histo

19/317120/4687400

A
B 19/316320/4687290
C
D

19/317270/4686250

USGS QUADRANGLE NEWTON, MA

SCALE 1:25,000

Present Use mixed use: resil

commercial, industrial

General Date or Period 17590-1

General Condition Fair-Gooc

Acreage 69.6 acres

Recorded by Peter Stott

Organization _ Newton Histo

Date April 1986

(SEE ATTACHED MAP)




NATIONAL REGISTER CRITERIA STATEMENT ({f applicable)

The Newton Upper Falls

Historic District encompasses regidential,

industrial, commercial, and institutional buildings associated with the
growth of Upper Falls as a mill village in the 19th century. Few
metropolitan communities retain such intact assemblages of early
structures. Most of the structures retain integrity of workmanship and

setting. The district

thus meets criteria a, B, and C of the National

Register of Historic Places.

ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

Describe important architectural features and evaluate in terms of

other areas within the community.

The Newton Upper Falls Historic District is an area of approximately 68
acres, bounded roughly by the Charles River on the west, Boylston Street on
the north, and the former Charles River Railroad on the south. Its
boundaries coincide with those of the Upper Falls Local Historic District,
established in 1976, expanded in 1978, and again in 1985 under the
provisions of Chapter 40C of the Massachusetts General Laws. Included in
the district are 212 properties containing 182 buildings and eight and a

half acres of the Metro
Reservation. The distr
property, Echo Bridge,

politan District Commission's Hemlock Gorge
ict also includes one existing National Register
the stone-arch Wwater—-supply aqueduct (NR-4/9/80).

~Bath Echo Bridge and the district's other historic stone bridge, Cook's

E idge, extend across t
tne National Register d

he Charles River into Needham. Thus the boundary of
istrict differs from that of the local historic

,:?HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE Explain historical importance of area and how the area relates to theé
.development of other areas of the communi ty.

AL Newton Upper Falls,

the Charles River falls 26 feet through a narrow

gorge. The availability of this power, harnessed as early as 15688,

"determined the location

of the village's earliest mills, as well as the

location of local streets.
The earliest entrepreneur to take advantage of the falls was John Clark

(1641-1695), when in 16

88 he constructed a sawmill. In the early 18th

century sold to the Parker family, the sawmill was joined by grist and

fulling mills. Only a
the Revolutionary war,
predate that conflict.
thought to have been a
construction, though it
agricultural period.
For Upper Falls, an
of Simon Elliot, a weal
~ import European-ground
- Parker's small snuff mi

handful of people lived in the village until after
and only one surviving structure is believed to
The Bixby House (744 Quinobequin Road, ¢.1750) is
much smaller farmhouse at Ehe time of its

remains the only example of the village's pre-wWar

important result of the Revolution was the arrival
thy Boston tobacco merchant. No longer able to
Snuff, Elliot turned to local Supplies, purchasing
11. After the war he expanded the works until by

the time of his death in 1793, Elliot's firm was one of the largest in New

Frgland,

BIBLIOGRAPHY and/or REFERENCES

Newton's 19th Century Architecture: Newton Upper & Lower Falls (1982).

Newton's o0lder Houses:

Newton Upper Falls, Publication No. 7 oF the

Jackson Homestead (n.

d., [c.1972777.
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INVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET Commumity ; | I Form No:

-~ MASSACHUSETTS HISTORICAL COMISSION Newton, Mass. MRA Area A
Office of the Secretary, Boston

Property Name: Upper Falls H.D.

Indicate each item on inventory form which is being continued below.
"ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE, cont,

district only in the inclusion of Needham portions of Echo Bridge and
Cook's Bridge,

Upper Falls is a miil village built to house and serve the employees of
the mills whiceh surrounded it. mMil]l locations determined the pattern of
Settlement in the village, visible today in the variegq architectural Styles
throughout the community. Thus, the earliest late-Georgian ang
Federal-period Structures are located @long Elliot ang Chestnut Streets,
close to the original mill sites at the upper ang lower dams. After Otis
Pettee established his machine shop along South Meadow Brook, the center of
the village began to shift away from the falls, as ney Greek Revival,
Italiantate, andg Mansard structures began to be built nearer Pettee's
works. The railroad further encouraged this shift, By the end of the 19th
century, most of the historic distriect had been developed with a mix of
Victorian Styles. With the continued Prosperity of the mills, however, the
village continued to grow in the 20th Century, expanding to the south and

The oldest gtructure in the district is the Bixby House at

L 744 Quinobequin Roa r @ 2-1/2~story farmhouse constructed about 1750, The
= Feuge is thought to have been substantially enlarged in the Federal period,

en the present delicate door Surround angd fanlight were added. The house
was moved to its present Site from a location on the river during one of
Boylston Street's seéveral widenings. Rare in the district is the 2-story
half-house at 1034 Chestnut Street (c.l770~90). The tall windows with 9/6
sash are characteristic of Late Georgian ang Federal-periog architecture.
Other Georgian details are Suggested by the pedimented door surround and
Narrow clapboards. The roof, hipped at one end, suggests that the builder

Elliot Manufacturing Company, arranged about a central courtyard. The
original 1821 3-1/2-story brick mill stil} Stands, and, with its clerestory
monitor roof intact, is a Very rare example of jts type in the state. Mill
No. 2, the two~story pitched roof thread mill, was constructed along the
river two Years later, and extended to its present length in 1853, when
Mill No. 3, facing it, was constructed. For their employees, the company
constructed housing, of which good examples remain at the corner of
Chestnut and Elliot streets. Most are one ang two-family cottages: the
double house 1036-1038 Chestnut has interior chimneys and floor plans which
are mirror images of each other, One of the most unusual of the surviving
millworkers' cottages, at the other end of Elliot Street was built by Otis
Pettee for hig employees: built in the 18303, 216 Elliot Street housed
four families, represented by four Separate chimneys. Two of the original

Greek Revival, which came into fashion in the 1830s and '40s. The Samuel
W  :ney House at 260 Elliot Street (now st. Elizabeth's Center),
constructed in 1838, is the most high-style example; its fluted two~-story
Doric columns angd flushboarded eng elevation give the house the intended
temple-like dppearance., It departs from other Newton four and six-column

Staple to Inventory form at bottom
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Property Name: Upper Falls H.D,
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ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE, cont.

The continuing demand for modest housing led to the conversion of a
number of barns and stables into residences around the turn of the century.
Within the district, five were identified, including examples on Sullivan
Avenue (nos. 17 and 38), and 20 and 24 Summer Street. Modest new
construction in this period took vernacular Colonial Revival forms,
including small gambrel-roof structures. Four of the district's eight
"four-square” houses were built on Linden Street between 1898 and 1909.

COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS. By the time of the Civil War, Upper Falls had
become a largely self-sufficient community with shops and services
necessary for ordinary occasions. Of these, the early examples, such as
the small tavern, 981 Chestnut Street (c.1825) are barely distinguishable
from residences. Most have also been considerably altered. The most
significant of these early structures is the Manufacturers' Hotel (1829), a
broad 2-1/2-story structure with its gable end toward the street. Four bays
in width, it displays a fully enclosed pediment. 301 Elliot (c.1903), one
of the few brick commerical blocks, retains its handsome cagst-iron
ground-floor shop fronts and pressed metal cornice above the third floor.
Although the district also includes the small railroad depot (1225 Chestnut

:reet), built to serve the original Charles River Railroad about 1852, a
«ire and the recent rehabilitation of the structure have replaced most of
the original building fabric with new materials.

EDUCATIONAL. The district contains two schools, both now converted to
residences. The earlier, 1024-1028 Chestnut, built about 1845, retains
Greek Revival details including a full pediment on the gable end. The
Ralph Waldo Emerson School is a three-story brick structure completed in
1905 to the designs of the well-known Boston firm of Hartwell & Richardson.
This firm was responsible for several of Newton's schools in this period,
including Newton Highlands' Hyde School (1895, Area B). The two street
facades are distinguished for their patterned brickwork, used to form
decorative panels, pilasters, and window surrounds. The hipped roof
Structure closed in the 19703 and has since been converted to condominium
units.

Stone construction is almost unknown in the district. The chief
exceptions are two structures built in the 1840s by Otis Pettee. The
"Stone Barn" (38-44 0Oak Street), unusual in having grade entries at each of
its four levels, features high fieldstone walls with door and window
surrounds worked in cut stone and brick. A monitor roof running the length
of the gable ridge provides light to the center of the building. Adjacent
to the barn, the fieldstone cottage at 22 Cliff Road is thought to have
been a workshop accompanying the barn.

The most recent factory within the district is the complex built for
the Gamewell Fire Alarm & Telegraph Company between 1889 and 1912. The
initial wood-frame two-story factory still stands, now sandwiched between
"Ater brick structures, both designed by the Boston mill engineering firm

- Lockwood, Greene & Company, utilizing the steel-frame construction then
coming into popularity in modern industrial building. (Lockwood, Greene
was also responsible for much of the Saco-Pettee Shops [#LF-327.)

Staple to Inventory form at bottom
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-+ MASSACHUSETTS HISTORICAL COMMISSION Newton, Mass., MRA Area A
Office of the Secretary, Boston

Property Name: Upper Falls H.D.

Indicate each item on inventory form which is being continued below.

ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE, cont.

Two bridges are also included in the district. Echo Bridge
(NR-4/9/80), constructed as part of the Sudbury River Aqueduct system in
1876-77, was designed by the French civil engineer, Alphonse Fteley
(1837-1903). The 475-foot long bridge consists of seven granite arches.
The river sgpan, with a length of 130 feet, was for many years the second
longest masonry-arch span in the U.S., following that of the 220-foot Cabin
John Bridge in Washington, D.C. 1Its picturesque location across Hemlock
Gorge has made the structure a famous landmark of the region ever gince its
construction. Immediately upstream of Echo Bridge is Cook's Bridge, a
three-span stone-arch structure carrying Elliot Street across the Charles
into Needham. Originally 25 feet wide, the 80-foot long rcadway was
carried by three stone arches, each with a span length of 24 feet. 1In
1897, to accomodate the Newton & Boston Street Railway, the bridge was
widened, rebuilding the upstream face 12 feet further upstream. The
Needham Historical Commission reports that the dry—laid structure was built

in the 1840s.

HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE, cont.

In the meantime, Thomas Parker, who had sold Elliot the dam and snuff
mill, constructed a second dam in 1793, a few hundred feet downstream
(predecessor of the "Metropolitan Circular Dam" of 1906). Parker
constructed a sawmill on the Needham side, and his son-in-law, the Needham
blacksmith Jonathan Bixby, constructed a scythe mill on Turtle Island, an
island in the river just below the dam. This was the beginning of iron
manufacturing here that would last until 1853, Jonathan and Rufus Ellis
purchased Bixby's interest in 1798 forming the Newton Iron Works (later
"Newton Factories"). Rufus Ellis, who later became its general manager,
oversaw construction of a rolling mill and nail factory on the island. His
own house, located above the mill site at 1235 Boylston Street (c.1790;
1828) is one of the most imposing of the period. By 1831, the nail works,
with an employee roster of 22 men, was one of Newton's largest industries.

Despite this activity, however, the community's major impetus to growth
was the formation in 1823 of the Elliot Manufacturing Company by Simon
Elliot's son-in-law, Thomas Handasyd Perkins. Under the direction of
Foxborough mechanic 0Otis Pettee (1795-1853), the company constructed cotton
and thread mills, still a key feature of the Newton Upper Falls Historic
District. Complementing the mills are several examples of Federal-period
workers' cottages (corner of Elliot and Chestnut streets), as well as the
1827 Unitarian Church (now First United Methoidist), built jointly by

*wton Factories and the Elliot Manufacturing Company. By 1831, Upper Falls
»asted 55 houses, largely along Elliot and Chestnut streets, and the
Worcester Turnpike, which bridged the Charles at Upper Falls in 1809.

Staple to Inventory form at bottom
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HYISTORICAE SIGNIFICANCE, cont.

Establishment of the mills also prompted the formation of both school
and fire districts in the 1820s. The Upper Falls school district was
established in 1824. The oldest school building in the village iz the
two-story schoolhouse at 1028 Chestnut Street, built in 1846 and used as a
school until 1855, when it was replaced by a grammar school on Pettee
Street (site of the present Emerson School). It is credited with being the
oldest school building still standing in Newton (Newcomb). The first fire
company in Upper Falls was organized in 1820. The diminutive structure at
54 High Street, built in 1842 for Mechanic #4 Company, served as a fire
station until 1879, when it was converted to residential use {Newcomb).

Pettee's invention of the double speeder in 1825 brought considerable
success to the Elliot Mfg. Co., and in 1831 pPettee established his own
machine shop at a location south of the cotton mill, on South Meadow Brook.
He built his own house in 1828 on the hill above Elliot Street (277 Elliot
Street, 1828; now stuccoed over), and housing for his employees in the
vicinity of his works (see 216 Elliot Street, 1830s).

Pettee was also responsible for bringing the Charles River Railroad to
Upper Falls in 1853. A small passenger depot constructed about that time

% 1225 Chestnut Street is one of the oldest such structures in the state.

owever, the railroad's role as a passenger and commercial freight carrier
into Boston was usurped for a decade when the line was leased by Norman C.
Munson (1821-1885). 1In 1859, Munson took the contract to fill the Back
Bay, and for the next ten years, with a work force of about 200 men, he ran
40~car gravel trains every 45 minutes between the line's terminus in
Needham and the Back Bay. His principal repair shops were in Upper Falls.

By 1860, the village had a population of nearly 1,000 persons, or about
12% of Newton as a whole. Measured by the number of employees in 1855, the
two largest manufacturers in Newton were the cotton mills, employing 75 men
and 85 women, and Pettee's shops, employing another 80 men. Immigrants
from Great Britain and Ireland increasingly made up the work force. By
1843, the Catholic population was sufficiently numerous to hold the town's
first Catholic services; their church, also Newton's first, was built in
1867 on the site of the present Mary Immaculate of Lourdes Church (280
Elliot Street), which replaced it in 1909. The blacksmith and scythe maker
Jonathan Bixby was one of the prominent founding members of the Second
Baptist Church, organized in 1833 as an offshoot of the first Baptist
Church in Newton Centre. Their original church (73 Ellis Street, <¢.1833)
sits high on the bluff overlooking the cotton mills.

A major event in the 1870s was the construction through Upper Falls of
the Sudbury River Aqueduct, whose crossing of the Charles River, Echo
Bridge, remains the most dramatic element of Hemlock Gorge. Boston's water
conduit, however, was paralleled by the construction of Newton's own water
system, authorized soon after Newton became a city. The city built its own
~tmping station (no longer standing) in Upper Falls on Needham Street.

' In the last gquarter of the 19th century, new industries came to Upper
Falls. 1In 1886 the old cotton mills, which closed in 1884, were taken over
by a New Jersey silk manufacturing company, Phipps & Train. Paper, and

Staple to Inventory form at bottom
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HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE, cont.

later rubber, factories replaced the 0ld iron works on Turtle Island, until
in 1907 the whole site was purchased by the Metropolitan Park Commission as
part of Hemlock Gorge Reservation. One industry of national standing was
the Gamewell Fire Alarm Company, which moved to Upper Falls from Newton
Highlands in 1889. 1Its patented fire-alarm telegraph was installed in
cities across the country; Newton's own system was installed in the 1870s,
and examples of its early fire—alarm boxes can still be seen around the
city. (The company moved to Medway in the 1970s.)

Throughout the early 20th century, Upper Falls retained its strong
industrial base, led by the Saco-Pettee machine shops, by then the largest
manufacturer in Newton, Gamewell, and the silk mill. Numerous small shops,
service organizations, local contractors and tradesmen gave the village a
self-sufficiency and isolation not shared by other, more suburban, parts of
Newton. Although the depression caused the demise of the Saco-Pettee
shops, Upper Falls retained much of its independence until after World War
IT1, when with the c¢losing of the silk mill, the village's commerical life
began to flag. As the most distinctive village in Newton retaining its
19th-century flavor, the city's first local historic district was

stablished in Upper Falls in 1976. Today, although the population of the
village is increasingly suburban and professional, its architectural
character is being retained as a reminder of its rich industrial past.

BIBLIOGRAPHY and/or REFERENCES

Thelma Fleishman, Charles River Dams {Auburndale: Charles River Watershed
Assoc., 1978).

K.W. Newcomb, "Historic Newton Upper Falls: A Walking Tour," (typescript,
n.d.).

City of Newton, Upper Falls Historic District Funding Program, The Netwon
Upper Falls Historic District (n.d. [e.19752]).

Staple to Inventory form at bottom
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